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Group Strategic Report including the Operating & Financial Review for 

the year ended 31 March 2015 
 

The Group Board presents its report and audited consolidated financial statements of the Curo 

Group (Albion) Ltd. (the ‘Group’) and its subsidiary undertakings, for the year ended 31 March 

2015. 

 

Overview of the business 

Curo is a not-for-profit housing and support organisation based in Bath, providing affordable 

homes and high quality care and support services across the West of England. We manage 

over 12,000 homes for more than 25,000 people and are building between 200 to 300 new 

homes every year. 
 

The Group was founded by Curo Places which was set up in 1999 following the transfer of 

housing stock from Bath and North East Somerset Council.  Curo Places was joined in 2002 by 

Curo Choice and by Curo Places (Bristol) in 2005.  Curo Enterprise was set up in 2012. 
 

As a registered provider, the group is a social enterprise and all of our surpluses are reinvested 

in our business.  Our main activities are as follows: 
 

 Long term rented housing for people who are unable to afford to rent or buy on the open 

market 

 Low cost home ownership homes, particularly shared ownership 

 Sheltered and supported housing and care for those who need additional support 

 Market rent accommodation 

 In addition, the group is involved in three open market sale projects 
 

The Group has an active development programme of 1,378 properties over the course of the 

next 5 years, of which 960 (70%) are social housing and 418 (30%) are private market sales. 

Its ambition is to be able to provide at least 200 social housing units annually and to facilitate 

this level through the generation of subsidy from private sale. 

 

Group Structure 

Within our group structure, we have completed the last part of our landlord function entity 

consolidation during the year.  Having already reduced from  three landlord functions into two 

legal entities (Curo Places Ltd. and Curo Places (Bristol) Ltd), we have now consolidated Curo 

Places (Bristol) Ltd with Curo Places Ltd with a transfer of engagements, achieving a fully 

harmonised and common landlord service across the Group. On the 31 March 2015:  
 

 Curo Places Ltd. converted from a company registered under the Companies Act with 

Companies House to a Community Benefit Society registered with the Financial Conduct 

Authority (“FCA”) under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act.   

 Following a transfer of engagement, all assets and liabilities for Curo Places (Bristol) Ltd.  

transferred to Curo Places Ltd. 

The purpose of the transfer is to increase efficiency and enhance customer service through 

simplifying the group structure. 
 

The results of the individual entities have been accounted for using the merger accounting 

principles, as set out in Financial Reporting Standard No. 6, ‘Acquisitions and Mergers’.  These 

consolidated financial statements remain unchanged from this restructure.  

In addition to our landlord function the following entities form part of the Curo Group: 
 

Curo Choice is a specialist care and support business, enabling us to create a centre of 

excellence which can provide services to our residents and to do work for non-residents too. 
 

Our non-charitable business, Curo Enterprise Ltd, created in 2012 is trading as Curo Homes 

and has enabled us to take on additional activities, including housing for sale, to generate 

income to cross subsidise our core business.   
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These changes have helped us to reinforce our corporate identity as Curo, which is Latin for ‘I 

care’ and encapsulates our values, ambitions and wider social purpose. 

 

Our mission, vision and values 

Curo’s plan sets out our mission, vision and values as follows 

 

Mission 

Our mission is our longer term purpose and it is: 

“To make a positive and profound contribution to the neighbourhoods we work in – inspiring 

and empowering people to succeed in life”. 

 

Vision 

Our vision describes what we want to become over the next five years. It focuses our attention 

to what is important over the medium term and informs our priorities. Our vision is that by 

2017: 

“We will be a modern, customer-driven ethical business, which makes a positive 

contribution to people and places”. 

 

Our values 

The values of our organisation are its moral backbone. They describe our style of leadership 

and the way our people are expected to behave. They set ideal standards, which we apply 

directly to the way we run our business, recruit our colleagues, manage our performance, and 

recognise and reward good work.  These values are: 

 

 Caring 

– We care about delivering great customer services. 

– We treat people as people – warmly and politely. 

– We have a culture where people feel valued and are inspired to give their best. 
 

 Respectful 

– We listen to people and respect their differences.  

– We adjust our services, where possible, to take account of people’s differences and 

preferences. When we cannot do this, we explain why. 
 

 Open 

– We are open with our customers, our colleagues and our partners.  

– We explain why some things need to remain confidential.   

– We involve our customers, colleagues and partners, so that they can contribute to our 

work and the plans we make. 
 

 Fair 

– We do the right thing ethically.  

– We treat people decently and consistently. 

– When we cannot do something, we are straightforward about it and we explain why. 
 

 Trusting 

– We trust people to do their jobs properly. 

– Like us, we expect our customers, colleagues and partners to make decisions for good 

reasons, keep their word and act honestly. 
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Strategic priorities 

The Group’s strategic objectives, as set out in our plan, are: 
 

 Renowned customer service; to improve customer experience; 

 Great properties and places; delivering more affordable homes and improving the quality 

of Curo’s existing asset base; 

 Ethical care and support; providing support to enable independent and successful lives of 

Curo’s customers including older people, young people and homeless. 

 Happy safe popular neighbourhoods; 

 Helping people who need work; 

 Lobbying for positive social change. 
 

Our strategic plan sets out the critical success factors (‘CSF’) for each strategic priority and 

the planned key actions to achieve these CSFs.   

 

Review of the Year 

We completed a number of the key actions identified to achieve our CSFs and thus contribute 

to successful implementation of our strategic priorities. 

 

 New Homes – we completed 244 new affordable homes in 2014/15. 

 Welfare Reform - in response to the introduction of Universal Credit we developed a 

detailed plan to support our customers through the changes. 

 Repairs and Response - as part of Curo’s plans to deliver value for money we introduced a 

mobile working capability for Curo Response and outsourced the provision of our stores, 

which is delivering a more efficient service for our customers at a lower cost. 

 Colleagues - secured Investors in People Gold recognition. 

 Contact Centre – we reduced call waiting time for customers; resolved more customer 

enquiries at first time of contact; reduced time to resolve complaints; extended opening 

hours from 5pm to 6pm and redirected fewer phones calls to business areas through 

better utilisation of resources, all of which has increased the effectiveness of the control of 

the trades’ teams. In addition, customers are offered a more consistent level of service as 

the Local Services Centres (LSCs) are now open all day rather than closing for lunch. 

 Lettings – we reduced re-let times from 32 days in 2013/14 to 24 days in 2014/15 

reducing void loses by £240k. 

 Stock Condition Survey - we have now completed surveying 64% of our stock, which will 

provide us with the information to enable a comprehensive review of our stock and 

consequent improvements to the quality and direction of planned maintenance.  

 Health and Safety - Curo is now compliant and safer for our colleagues especially with 

regards to the management of asbestos and fire safety. 

 Programme Office - we have imposed tighter programme control and budgetary 

responsibility, which in 2014/15 delivered projects at a cost of £677k with anticipated 

savings by 2016/17 of £1.4m. 

 House Building – we established an experienced team to oversee our house building 

division and have purchased two sites which will deliver 139 homes in addition to Mulberry 

Park. 

 Mulberry Park – we were awarded planning permission for the development of 700 homes 

at Mulberry Park, which will deliver a significant boost to the housing stock of Bath. 
 

More detailed information about our financial position, operating performance and 

development activities is given elsewhere in this report. 
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The Year Ahead – Looking Forward 

Curo will continue to implement its “Big Plan” and the key actions identified to achieve its 

strategic priorities.  Key actions planned for 2015/16 include: 

 

 Completing around 250 new affordable homes. 

 Starting construction at Mulberry Park and delivering homes for sale from other sites. 

 Continued implementation of our plan to help our customers deal with the consequences of 

welfare reform including Universal Credit and a cut in the welfare cap. 

 Embedding the new mobile working and stores process to complete the modernisation of 

Curo Response. 

 Extending the opening hours of the Contact Centre to 8am to 8pm. 

 Expanding the stock condition survey to cover over 90% of all housing stock. 

 Developing a register of our assets and liabilities. 

 Process re-engineering the 11 key customer journeys in order to improve consistency, 

reduce costs and improve customer satisfaction. 

 Tendering for new contracts to increase revenue from the Care and Support “Step Down” 

service. 

 Achieving further savings in procurement in addition to the £4m saved over the past 3 

years. 

 Increasing employment of apprentices. 

 

Regulation & Corporate Governance 

 

Regulatory Framework 
 

The Group is regulated by the Social Housing Regulator which is part of the Homes and 

Communities Agency (HCA). It has to comply with the regulatory framework which was 

recently revised in April 2015. The framework retains at its core the principle of co-regulation. 

Boards are responsible for the effective performance of their organisations, compliance with 

the standards and being transparent and accountable to stakeholders.   
 

The HCA framework retains seven standards set out in two primary areas; Economic and 

Consumer. 
 

Economic 

 Governance and financial viability 

 Value for money (VFM) 

 Rent 
 

Consumer 

 Tenant involvement and empowerment 

 Home 

 Tenancy 

 Neighbourhood and community 
 

In respect of economic regulation, the regulator has a proactive role and is satisfied with 

Curo’s compliance with the economic Standards with the highest ratings of G1 and V1 

published on 26 October 2014.  
 

The regulator will expect the consumer standards to be met, but it will only intervene in a 

service delivery matter if there is evidence of actual or potential serious detriment. Curo’s 

Board and Scrutiny Panel are responsible for ensuring that the consumer standards are met. 

The Board 

The term ‘corporate governance’ generally refers to the supervision of how an organisation is 

run and how it manages the risks to its business. It includes regulation, corporate structure 

and the function of the Board. 
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The Group is governed by a Board of up to 13 non-executive members.  The Group’s board 

members who served during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements 

are listed on page 1. 
 

With the exception of Curo Enterprise, our Boards sit as a “Combined Board” of 14 for efficient 

decision making and this is made up of core Board members and independent subsidiary Board 

members.  At the end of the year due to the group restructure this fell to 13.  
 

The Group complies with the National Housing Federation’s ‘Excellence in Governance – Code 

for Members’ 2010 with the exception of the size of the “Combined Board” explained above. 
 

Directors’ indemnity statement 

All board members, committee members and colleagues of the Group are provided with 

Directors and Officers Liability insurance through the National Housing Federation to protect 

them from claims made against them in their capacity as representatives of the organisation.  
 

Delegation 

The Group Board is responsible for strategy for the Group as well as overseeing its 

performance.  Specific responsibilities have been delegated to committees which have their 

own approved terms of reference.  Day to day performance is delegated to the Executive 

Team.  The major committees supporting the Group Board and governance arrangements 

during the year were: 
 

Audit and Assurance Committee – responsible for overseeing internal and external audit, the 

effectiveness of internal controls and the risk management framework. 

 

Governance and Remuneration Committee – responsible for advising the Board on governance, 

remuneration and Board or Committee appointments, as well as remuneration and contractual 

terms for the Executive Team and colleagues. 

 

Finance Committee – responsible for monitoring and reviewing the Group’s viability through 

effective monitoring and management of the Group’s finances, including funding and treasury 

matters. 

 

Customer Experience Committee – responsible for monitoring and scrutinising the impact of 

Curo’s work on its customers and neighbourhoods.   

 

Curo Homes Committee – during the year the Board decided to widen the role of Curo 

Enterprise and under the name of “Curo Homes”, set up a committee responsible for Curo 

Enterprise and the build for sale activities, Affordable Homes programme and regeneration. 

 

Investment for the future 

The Group is continually looking to improve its services to achieve its mission and vision ‘to 

make a positive and profound contribution, inspiring and empowering people to succeed in 

life’. 
 

The Group is committed to spending over £26m annually over the next 5 years to maintain 

and improve its existing housing stock.  It tries to maintain a balance of 40:60 in spreading 

this expenditure between day to day responsive repairs and planned works such as cyclical 

decorations and the replacement and upgrading of roofing, kitchens, bathrooms and heating 

systems. 
 

The Group has an active development programme and at the end of March 2015 has a 

development pipeline of 1,378 homes over the next few years. To enable the Group to 

maintain its social housing development it intends to undertake a programme of open market 

sales and has already committed to major investments in sites at Mulberry Park (Bath) and 

Blackberry Hill (Bristol). 
 

The Group recognises the importance of the colleagues who work for the business and we 

invest significantly in training, education and personal development. During the year we 

completed a leadership development programme for senior and middle managers. Training 
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courses are available for colleagues, run in house, or externally for specialised needs.  The 

Group involves colleagues through a number of consultation groups and communicates 

through its intranet, team meetings, cascade briefings and various corporate and colleague 

publications. 
 

We continue to invest in the IT systems, infrastructure and software.  During 2014-15, as part 

of our new IT strategy, we implemented mobile working and dynamic work scheduling for our 

“in house” repairs contractor, Curo Response. We also launched a 2-3 year project to design, 

install, configure and commission an enterprise wide electronic data management (EDM) 

system. 

 

Key risks 

The Group has in place a risk management strategy and framework which provides a guide for 

Board members and managers on the Group’s approach to risk management.  A group risk 

map is also maintained.  The definition of risk for this purpose is an event that could prevent 

the business plan from being achieved if it were to crystallise.  A risk register is maintained 

summarising key controls to manage each risk, it also defines who is responsible for the 

control, and how the control effectiveness is monitored.  Risks are analysed according to their 

potential impact and probability i.e. high, medium and low given the current control 

environment.  Through the process of regular review those risks which present the greatest 

threats to the group are identified and reported to the Audit and Assurance Committee on a 

quarterly basis and to the Combined Board at every meeting. The Audit and Assurance 

Committee selects individual high risks for an in-depth review at its meetings. These risks are 

also reviewed and updated by senior management on a fortnightly basis.  Action plans are 

regularly updated to mitigate any risks with both high impact and probability in order to reduce 

the net future risk to medium or low.   
 

Risk management supports the achievement of business objectives by: 
 

 Enhancing the quality of decision-making, planning and prioritisation; 
 

 Contributing to effective allocation of resources; and 
 

 Protecting and enhancing the Group’s assets and image. 

 

The Group has assessed that the following risks are those that are most likely to influence 

future performance: 
 

 Right To Buy – the impact of the proposed extension of RTB by the new government 

cannot be assessed until the details are released, but they may impact on Curo’s capacity 

to build more affordable homes. 

 Universal Credit and benefits cap reduction – arrears and bad debts may increase by more 

than estimated in our financial plan. 
 

Value for money 

Executive Summary 

Value for Money (VFM) is one of the economic standards in the regulatory framework of the 

Homes & Communities Agency (HCA), the regulator of our business.  It states that “providers 

should have a strategy for optimising value for money and systems to ensure that this strategy 

is delivered”. 
 

Curo is currently three years into a five year corporate strategy entitled the “Big Plan” covering 

the years 2012/13 to 2016/17, which includes 6 strategic priorities. VFM is central to the 

delivery of the strategic priorities in the most cost-effective way and to running Curo in 

accordance with our vision of being a modern, customer focused and ethical business, despite 

ongoing macroeconomic headwinds. Curo’s strategic focus is on: 
 

 Renowned customer service; to improve customer experience; 

 Great properties and places; delivering more affordable homes and improving the quality 

of Curo’s existing asset base; 

 Ethical care and support; providing support to enable independent and successful lives of 
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Curo’s customers including older people, young people and homeless. 

 Happy safe popular neighbourhoods; 

 Helping people who need work; 

 Lobbying for positive social change. 
 

This VFM self-assessment covers: 
 

1. Curo’s VFM Strategy 
 

2. Curo’s VFM performance 2014/15 as evidenced by: 

1. Return on assets both financial and social 

2. Comparative service delivery costs and performance measures 

3. VFM gains to date and targeted gains 
 

The key VFM achievements during 2014/15 were: 
 

 An improved financial return on assets from 3.4% to 4.4% 

 Improvement in average re-let times from 32 days to 24 days 

 Improvement in operating margin from 18.7% to 24.4% 

 Invested £0.7m in projects, delivering anticipated savings of £1.4m by 2016/17 

 157 people helped into work, education and / or training 
 

Whilst progress has been made on customer satisfaction and advocacy levels, Curo is currently 

falling below the levels it aspires to, but believes that the investment over the past 3 years in 

colleagues and operational processes will deliver improved performance from 2015/16 

onwards. 

 

1. Curo’s VFM Strategy 

Curo’s approach to VFM is as follows: 

 
 

Value for Money Strategy 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.1 Embed VFM throughout Curo 

By ensuring that accountability and responsibility for cost and quality outcomes and 

measures are reflected in the budget, team plans and in individual objectives and as 

reported and reviewed in monthly performance meetings, ‘VFM’ has become part of 

Curo’s culture and ‘the way we do things’ and not seen as something separate. 
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1.2 Procurement 

A key element of VFM is the delivery of the Procurement Strategy which was approved 

by the Board in July 2012.  It has a number of detailed aims which address the six 

strategic priorities, including delivery of our stated efficiency target of 3% of 

procurement expenditure. Benefits realised from procurement activities are reported in 

our VFM Performance Report (see section 2.3.1) and are measured in both cash and 

non-cash savings.  Cash savings are measured by cost reductions achieved when 

comparing with previous costs, and, for new activities, by measuring actual prices 

against estimated prices.  Non-cash savings measure improved services, either in 

delivery quality or specification, as well as social value. 

 

1.3 Assets and resources assessment 

An integral part of the VFM strategy involves maintaining a detailed and ongoing 

assessment of our return on assets and ensuring that our Development and Asset 

Management Strategy effectively optimises this return. Curo also measures its return 

on assets in terms of investment in colleagues and social impact – see “maximising 

social value” at section 2.1.3. 

 

1.4 Benefits realisation 

In the context of delivering our strategic objectives, we: 

 Demonstrate a robust approach to use of resource decisions, with particular 

emphasis on ensuring a clear understanding of the business case including inputs 

and intended benefits; 

 Review and report on all completed business plan programmes, comparing the 

actual benefits realised against those planned. The summary of the outcomes of 

these programmes is included in Business Plan Programme Benefits (see section 

2.3.2). 

 

1.5 Performance and Benchmarking 

As well as benefits realisation delivered via the business plan and procurement, we also 

use a series of KPIs covering service delivery, customer satisfaction and activity costs, 

inter alia.  A Performance Dashboard, containing the key strategic indicators, is 

reported to the Customer Experience Committee and Board quarterly.  On a monthly 

basis, operational indicators are used in all areas across the business to monitor and 

improve service delivery, quality and costs.  Monthly accounts are used to monitor 

actual financial performance against budget, and to enable business improvement 

activities to be identified and monitored.  
 

Benchmarking is also a key part of delivering VFM within Curo.  Curo is a member of the 

Housemark Benchmarking Club which includes many other RPs, ALMOs and Local 

Authorities.  This club works on the principle that members share operational and 

financial information to allow comparisons to be made. Financial and operational 

performance data is submitted on a regular (usually annual) basis in a standard format.  

We include quartile indicators from Housemark on our KPI reports so, as well as 

assessing our own internal performance, we measure our progress against our peers. 

The Board has agreed an improvement trajectory for 5 years that Curo is following and 

has moved us from 4th to 3rd quartile over the last 2 years. 

 

1.6 Maximising social value 

Delivering VFM is central to running an effective social business which adds value. We 

measure value by setting out the desired outcome in advance.  These outcomes include 

both social and financial outcomes and are measured in the context of the 6 strategic 

priorities set out in Curo’s Big Plan.  
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2. Curo’s performance 2014/15 

Curo’s key focus for 2014/15 was on achieving its target operating surplus and 

improving its customer advocacy levels. Curo successfully achieved its financial 

performance target with effective budgetary control and monitoring throughout the 

year. We have also seen real service delivery improvements in a number of areas: 
 

 1,827 components replaced (kitchens, bathrooms, heating systems etc) against a 

target of 1,661; 

 Overall void loss reduced to 1% (£618k) against a target aligned with budget of 

1.28% (£754k); 

 Arrears management improved with gross current tenant arrears (General Needs & 

Housing for Older Persons) at 3.10% at end March 2015 compared with 5.10% at 

the same point the previous year, reducing our actual arrears by £1.23m  
 

However customer satisfaction and advocacy levels fell short of the 2014/15 target 

albeit they have remained consistent with 2013/14.  
 

Business improvement programmes focusing on improving the customer experience and 

achieving efficiencies are underway or due to commence during 2015/16, which we 

anticipate will deliver the step change we require to achieve our strategic aim of 

performing on cost and quality at above median in comparison with our peers by 

2017/18.  

 

 

2.1 Return on assets 

At Curo we measure our return on assets through our physical assets, our colleagues and the 

social return on investment we achieve.  
 

2.1.1 Physical Assets 

The table below provides an overview of our asset base and its current performance. 
 

 

Total Rented 

House 

builder 

Shared 

ownership 

Investment 

properties 

Operating Surplus 16,619 16,214 (1,784) 1,509 680 

Capital Employed  381,757 320,738 35,024 19,726 6,269 

Actual Return 2013/14 3.4% 3.7% -5.1% 9.7% 6.2% 

Actual Return 2014/15 4.4% 5.1% -5.1% 7.6% 10.8% 

Forecast return 

2019/2020 4.5% 3.8% 6.6% 8.9% 12.5% 

      ‘Rented’ includes all our general needs and housing for older people, made up of stock 

transferred from B&NES, traditional housing and new social rented homes Curo has developed. 
 

Curo Enterprise is the building division set up in order to invest in new build homes for sale to 

support the development of 250 social rented homes per year in the absence of government 

funding and sales of existing homes. The returns in the early years are budgeted to be 

negative whilst investment is being made in acquiring a land bank; however returns will 

increase as the land is developed and houses are sold.  
 

In 2014/15 the programme to convert Georgian properties to market rent has continued giving 

a total portfolio of 127 homes converted. Each conversion provides rental over the next 30 

years to enable the replacement of grant funding for 2 new affordable homes to be built. 
 

In addition to this programme we have delivered 244 new affordable homes during 2014/15. 
 

New stock condition data that covers 64% of the stock (as at end March 2015) has been used 

to develop a whole stock model, which identifies how properties are performing on both a 

financial and qualitative basis. 
 

The new stock condition data provides us with more accurate intelligence about safety issues, 

thermal efficiency and component priorities. An options appraisal of blocks with significant 



 

Page 12 of 50                    Curo Group (Albion) Ltd.  

  

damp and mould issues was completed in 2014/15 and a pilot scheme is due to complete in 

2015/16, the outcomes of which will help to inform potential future programmes. As well as 

updating the 30 year financial plan in terms of investment in component replacement, the 

priority for the coming year will be on consulting with residents on a new approach that 

focuses on addressing fuel poverty, ensuring that we’re doing the right works at the right time 

in our customers’ homes. We will be developing our 2016/17 programme around this new 

approach alongside our continued investment in component replacement. A major 

procurement exercise is underway to provide solar (PV) panels to all our homes, in a contract 

worth £12m. The outcome of this work will be to significantly reduce energy costs to our 

residents. We will also start to focus on a more holistic approach to addressing building fabric 

failures in particular types of housing, with the aim of reducing reactive repairs expenditure 

and customer complaints. 
 

The graph below shows our investment to date, budgeted spend for 2015/16 and planned 

expenditure for the following 2 years as set out in our financial plan. Whilst the additional 

investment in our homes will not deliver above median performance on cost, it will support the 

step change in customer satisfaction with quality of the home to above median performance. 

 

 

 
 

 

The stock condition survey has also enabled Curo to identify its 100 worst performing 

properties taking into account quality and wider neighbourhood factors as well as financial 

performance. In the absence of a viable alternative use they will be disposed of at a rate of 10 

per annum over the next 10 years as and when they become void. In 2014/15, Curo disposed 

of one property and an additional 4 void properties have so far been identified in the disposal 

plan for 2015/16. The net receipts of these disposals will be used to fund new affordable 

housing. 

 

2.1.2  Colleagues  

During 2014/15 we realised the benefit of our leadership development programme of the 

previous year with improvements in budgetary and business performance alongside a 

significant increase in colleague satisfaction from 4th quartile in 2013/14 to 3rd quartile in 

2014/15 and a reduction in sickness absence levels. Our continued focus on colleague 

communication, learning and development alongside clear processes for people management 

led to our achievement of the Investor in People gold standard in August 2014.  
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We have continued to invest in our colleagues during 2014/15, with around 300 completing 

the ‘I lead myself’ module of the leadership development programme. Both this programme 

and the Energize customer service programme are now embedded in our induction programme 

for new starters. In addition, 5 colleagues completed an external mentoring programme.  

 

In 2015/16 our mentoring provision has been expanded to provide both an internal and 

external programme, giving opportunities for 17 mentees and in addition, 10 colleagues to 

train as mentors. This is in the context of a wider talent management framework, with the aim 

of developing our internal talent pool to improve business performance and accessing an 

external talent pool to improve the quality of future candidates. 

 

2.1.3 Maximising social value 

Curo continued to make significant social value gains during 2014/15, particularly across our 

care and support services (Building Independence service plus Older Persons / Retirement 

Living) where social return on investment (SROI) is taken from our outcomes data using 

standard sector values to assess how much social return each outcome holds. The £11m of 

social value includes preventing hospital admission on 1,124 occasions, preventing 393 people 

from going into residential care and preventing homelessness for 448 people. SROI is reduced 

from last year’s figure of £16m, partly due to lower customer throughput in our temporary 

accommodation schemes. This indicates higher stability and a lower eviction rate. 
 

During 2014/15 we have also: 
 

 Delivered 2 apprenticeships in house;  

 Offered 2 university work placements to local students to fulfil course requirements;  

 Helped 157 of our customers into work, education or training;  

 Achieved 3 apprenticeship places as a result of our procurement activity.  
 

For 2015/16, as well as continuing our focus on delivering apprenticeship opportunities in-

house, we have developed a graduate scheme to provide one graduate with a training 

placement followed by a guaranteed role in Curo Enterprise. We have also created a 

scholarship for Curo residents, which will provide top-up funding for one resident to undertake 

a university degree (£3k per annum for up to 3 years). In addition we will be offering two 12 

week paid internships during the summer in partnership with Bath Spa University, to provide 

work experience to current undergraduates. 
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2.2  Comparative service delivery costs and performance  

Curo uses Housemark core benchmarking to assess its costs and performance in comparison 

with our peers. The table below shows Curo’s performance in 2013/14 and 2014/15 on cost 

and quality in our main business areas in terms of our quartile position, and the movement 

expected based on our budgets and performance targets for 2015/16. The comparator group 

we have used is all England housing associations with 7,500-15,000 homes, outturn data for 

2013/14 as the latest available data. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

Key strategic KPIs include: 

KPI 
2013/14 

actual 

2014/15 

actual 

Benchmark 

(quartile) 

2015/16 

target 

2015/16 

benchmark 

Customer Net 

Promoter Score  

(which measures 

customer advocacy) 

+34 +35 1st +38 1st 

Overall service quality 82% 79% 4th 83.5% 3rd 

Customer satisfaction 

that Curo offers value 

for money 

84% 84% 2nd 85% 2nd 

Customer satisfaction 

with last repair 
88% 84% 4th 90% 3rd 

Average cost of a 

responsive repair 
£135 £120 2nd £122 2nd 
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KPI 
2013/14 

actual 

2014/15 

actual 

Benchmark 

(quartile) 

2015/16 

target 

2015/16 

benchmark 

Average time to re-let 

properties 
32 days 24 days 2nd 21 days 2nd 

Operating margin 18.7% 24.4% 3rd 23.1% 3rd 

Interest cover 161% 195% 1st 203% 1st 

 

2.3 VFM gains to date and targeted gains 

As well as assessing VFM improvements through comparative analysis of operational 

performance and costs, Curo also measures VFM outcomes against procurement gains and 

benefits realised through business plan projects. 

 

2.3.1 Procurement gains 

Procurement has delivered £4m savings over the past 3 years. In 2014/15 20 out of 22 

contracts delivered a saving of £258k (7.46%). However two key contracts did not deliver 

savings. Stores delivered a contract value £74k above budget due to the lack of comparable 

pricing and underestimation of the pricing of individual components. The planned heating 

programme delivered component costs in line with budget but the forecast saving did not 

include an allowance for variation items, which added £107k to the contracted cost. 

Consequently in 2014/15 procurement delivered overall 0.54% savings against a target of 3%, 

equating to £0.07m.   
 

In addition to the monetary savings above in 2014/15 procurement also delivered: 

 A framework to govern the supply of Legal Services, freezing rates for a further 12 

months; 

 A 34% reduction in open suppliers; 

 A new sundry payment procedure leading to a 48% reduction in number of transactions 

from 2013/2014; 

 The re-procurement of our Customer Insight programme which achieved more benefit for 

the same cost. For the same cost as 2014/2015 and saving 47% against our existing 

supplier, the coming year will deliver:  

o Additional survey numbers 

o Additional reporting provided by the supplier 

o New workshop facilitation to support teams to use the results better 

o A new on-line reporting portal, delivering further savings in subsequent years. 

 

2.3.2 Business Plan Programme benefits 

2014/15 was year 3 of our Transformation Programme, with business process re-engineering 

projects underway that will deliver cost and quality improvements that will ultimately lead to 

improved value for money for our customers. We have taken the opportunity to review our 

approach to project delivery to achieve the strategic priorities as set out in the Big Plan. The 

aim by 2017/18 is to deliver above median performance on cost and quality metrics in 

comparison with our peers (see chart at 2.2). To this end we have restructured our projects 

into 9 major change programmes: 
 

Commenced 2014/15 

 Curo response modernization 

 Housing income optimization  

 Management Information Systems improvements 

 Establishment of Curo Homes 

 Renowned customer service 
 

Due to commence 2015/16 

 Great properties and places 
 

Due to commence 2016/17 

 Enabling independent lives 
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 Finance business improvement 

 HR business improvement 
 

Each programme has a focus on the customer experience, supported by customer journey 

mapping to help us understand our customers’ moments of truth in their contact with us. We 

have established a clear governance structure with Programme Boards in place to track delivery 

against plan and measure outputs and outcomes, with programme benefits determined and 

reported up to Portfolio Executive and the Board.  

 

During 2014/15 we spent £677k on business improvement projects. The following benefits have 

been realised from these and earlier projects: 
 

Programme Benefits 2014/15 
Future benefits anticipated 
2015/16-2016/17 

Curo response modernisation 

Mobile working 

implementation;  

New outsourced Stores 

provision;  

Business process re-

engineering 

£480k savings achieved. 

Improvements in the last 

quarter of the year on customer 

advocacy (NPS) from +32.2 at 

the start of the project to +47.4 

to the end of the year 

£480k savings through 

improved productivity and 

efficiency gains through new 

Stores provision. Further 

customer advocacy 

improvements 

Housing income optimisation 

Business process 

improvements;  

Training;  

Data cleansing 

Improved data integrity  Efficiency saving of 520 

working days per year to 

enable more arrears chasing, 

leading to improvement in 

arrears position of £276k 

over a 12 month period 

MIS improvements 

Document management 

system implementation; 

New HR information 

system 

None anticipated Anticipated £70k cashable 

savings 

Renowned customer service 

Process re-engineering of 

re-letting empty homes 

Re-let times reduced from 32 

days in 2013/14 to 24 days in 

2014/15; Lettings NPS increased 

from +54 to +58.7; customer 

effort score increased from 26% 

to 53% 

Performance maintained; 

customer satisfaction 

increased 

Increased opening hours 

for customers;  

Re-location of Contact 

Centre;  

Rationalization of satellite 

offices 

Increased service offer for same 

cost; increased colleague NPS in 

Contact Centre; £39k reduction 

from closing 2 local offices 

£39k savings year on year  

Business process re-

engineering of complaints 

process 

Reduction in average time to 

resolve complaints from 83 days 

(2013/14) to 23 days 

(2014/15); improvements in 

customers feeding back that 

issue resolved in line with 

expectations from 16% 2013/14 

to 26% 2014/15 

Further reduction to 16 days 

in 2015/16 

 

In summary, based on projects delivered in 2014/15 with a total cost of £677k, the anticipated 

savings to 2016/17 equate to £1.4m. 
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Financial performance progression 
 

The table below illustrates Group consolidated financial results (£m unless otherwise stated) 

for the last three years aligned to the introduction of the Strategic Plan.     
 

Income and expenditure 2015 2014 2013 

Turnover 68.1 63.3 59.5 

Operating costs and cost of sales (51.5) (51.4) (50.3) 

Operating surplus 16.6 11.9 9.2 

Net interest charge and other financing costs (7.2) (6.6) (6.2) 

Surplus on sale of assets 0.9 0.4 0.2 

Surplus for the year 10.3 5.7 3.2 

    

Balance sheet 2015 2014 2013 

Housing properties at cost less depreciation 451.2 420.9 391.9 

Investment properties at valuation 3.1 1.2 - 

Social Housing and other grant (126.8) (118.0) (113.4) 

Fixed assets 327.5 304.1 278.5 

Other tangible fixed assets & investments 6.1 6.2 6.2 

Net current assets/(liabilities) 50.6 37.2 38.4 

Total assets less current liabilities 384.2 347.5 323.1 

Creditors due after one year 264.0 240.7 223.0 

Other long term liabilities 15.3 9.5 12.6 

Reserves 104.9 97.3 87.5 

Long term creditors and reserves 384.2 347.5 323.1 

    

Financial Ratios 2015 2014 2013 

Operating margin – on social housing 

lettings 
26.7% 18.1% 14.2% 

Operating margin – all activities 24.4% 18.7% 15.5% 

Interest cover – excluding asset sales 195.1% 160.7% 143.9% 

Interest cover – including asset sales 216.7% 181.0% 156.9% 

Net gearing 47.4% 45.5% 41.5% 

Operating cost per unit managed - £ £4,372 £4,422 £4,382 

Debt per unit managed - £ £22,350 £18,921 £17,705 
 

Financial review 
 

The main accounting policies of the Group are set out on pages 29 to 33 of the financial 

statements.   
 

The Group’s finances are sound and a key objective is to maintain this financial strength so 

that we can continue to invest both in new homes and in our service improvements.  The key 

financial indicators we use are: 
 

 Interest cover – measuring our ability to pay loan interest and ensure that operational 

cash flows cover costs of debt. 
 

 Gearing – measuring our level of indebtedness. 
 

 Operating margin, with and without asset disposals – a measure of efficiency. 
 

We have introduced 5 Financial Rules that provide internal parameters for us to operate within 

and include operating margin (of our social business), interest cover, investment in 

regeneration, investment in Curo Enterprise and the proportion of turnover derived from 

private house sales. 

 

Income and expenditure 

The Group operating surplus for 2014/15 of £16.6m was £4.7m greater than the previous 

year.  This rise in surplus was achieved through increased turnover coupled with capping our 

cost base at prior year levels.  The increased turnover was due to a combination of annual rent 
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increases together with incremental income from the development of new homes.  Operating 

costs were not increased with additional upfront investment in Curo Enterprise and increased 

depreciation charges being offset by efficiency and cost control savings across the business, 

most notably within Curo Response. 

 

During the year we accounted for a £0.7m land impairment adjustment to reflect the current 

net realisable value of land purchased for sale.  Additionally we have accounted for £0.5m of 

property impairment following our annual impairment review of fixed assets. 

 

Reserves 

The Group net surplus of £10.3m has increased our reserves to £104.9m. We will invest this in 

delivery of new homes, maintaining and improving our existing homes and improving our 

services to residents. 
 

Of the total investment of £519m in our homes, £127m (24%) has been funded from grants, 

£263m (51%) from loans and the remaining £129m (25%) from reserves and working capital. 

 

Balance sheet 

Some key balance sheet facts as at 31st March 2015 are: 
 

 Group housing properties depreciated cost £451m (an increase of £30m in the year). 

 Social Housing and other capital grants totalled £127m (an increase of £9m in the year). 

 Homes in management now total 12,862, with 1,378 in the pipeline for development. 

 £263m of loans had been drawn, leaving £87m undrawn. 

 Net current assets were £51m, including £22m of cash at bank or on deposit. 

 

Cash flow 

Cash flows for the year are set out in the cash flow statement on page 28, which shows: 
 

 Operating activities generated £8.9m 

 Our net interest charge was £7.9m, up £0.9m since 2014 
 

During the year £32m was spent on new properties. Social housing grant of £5.7m was 

received and net loans drawn were £43m. 

 

Capital structure and treasury strategy 

The Group has a formal treasury management strategy, which is regularly reviewed.  The 

purpose of the policy is to establish the framework within which the Group seeks to protect 

and control risk and exposure in respect of its borrowings and cash holdings.  The treasury 

strategy addresses funding and liquidity risk and covenant compliance. 
 

Following the merger of our two landlords functions, the Group now only has one active 

borrower; Curo Places Ltd.  Curo Places is partly funded by syndicate loans provided through 

Curo Group (Albion) Ltd (the Group’s parent company).  The remaining borrowing is through 

bilateral loan agreements. 
 

Borrowing and arranged facilities, as at 31 March 2015, can be summarised as follows: 
 
 

 Arranged 

£m 

Drawn 

£m 

Curo Places 350.4 263.2 
 

At 31st March 2015, the Group had £87.2m (2014: £85.2m) of arranged facilities that were 

not drawn.  Cash held or on deposit at the year end totalled £22.2m, leaving net debt of 

£241.0m (2014: £210.8). 
 

The weighted average period for drawn debt is 20 years 1 month (2014: 19 years 3 months). 

Approximately £11m of existing drawn loans is due to be repaid in the next five years, 

ensuring the Group has minimal refinancing risk.  The weighted average cost of debt, inclusive 

of margins and hedging activities as at 31st March 2015 was 3.21% (2014: 3.12%).  
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There is one intercompany loan arrangement currently in place; 

 £100m loan facility between Curo Places Ltd (lender) and Curo Enterprise Ltd (borrower). 
 

This facility is payable on demand. 

 

Current liquidity 

The Group’s policy is to hold a minimum of £10 million in cash which is invested in overnight 

deposits. These deposits are spread over a number of banks which meet our investment 

criteria in respect of creditworthiness and approved limits. As at 31 March 2015, we were 

holding a higher cash balance than normal due to the drawdown of funds from a new private 

placement.     

 

Interest rate management 

The Group has actively managed its loan portfolio, seeking to take advantage of the historically 

low long terms of interest rates through extending the fixed periods of existing fixed rate loans 

and hedging instruments.  In this way the Group can achieve certainty in terms of interest rate 

cost but in the short term can still borrow at the very low variable rates currently on offer. 
 

As at 31 March 2015, the percentage of fixed and variable role loans was as follows, fixed 

73.1% (2014: 71.5%) variable 26.9% (2014: 28.5%). The level of fixed rate loans is 

marginally higher than our treasury policy threshold but enables us to reduce uncertainty on 

future interest payments. 

 

Loan covenant compliance 

Loan covenants are primarily determined by interest cover, gearing rates and asset cover, 

based on social housing values.  Both financial and non-financial covenants are monitored 

regularly and were met throughout the year and at the year end and for all loan facilities. 

 

Development activity 

The property market continued to grow during the year supported by greater mortgage 

availability and improvement in the economy creating greater consumer confidence. 
 

This year the group has recruited senior managers to begin the growth of Curo Enterprise to 

build houses for private sale and for supplying new affordable homes for rent. This team will be 

delivering the development of Mulberry Park and the potential regeneration of the 

neighbouring estates. 
 

During the year, 244 new homes were built, and 34 shared ownership sales completed 

generating £2.8 million.   
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Group Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 March 2015 
  

Statement of Board’s responsibilities 

The directors are responsible for preparing the Group Strategic Report including the Operation 

and Financial Review, Group Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with 

applicable law and regulations. 
 

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. 

Under that law the directors have prepared the group and parent company financial 

statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United 

Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law).  Under company law the directors must 

not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair 

view of the state of affairs of the group and the company and of the profit or loss of the 

company and group for that period.  In preparing these financial statements, the directors are 

required to: 
 

 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

 make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

 state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any 

material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; 

 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to 

presume that the company will continue in business. 
 

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to 

show and explain the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any 

time the financial position of the company and the group and enable them to ensure that the 

financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006, the Housing and Regeneration Act 

2008 and the Accounting Direction for Social Housing in England 2012. They are also 

responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and the group and hence for taking 

reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Group’s website. 

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial 

statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 
 

The Group’s board members who served during the year and up to the date of signing the 

financial statements are listed on page 1. 

 

Report of the Board on Internal Control 

The Board has overall responsibility for establishing and maintaining the whole system of 

internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. 
 

The Board recognises that no system of internal control can provide absolute assurance or 

eliminate all risk.  The system of internal control is designed to manage risk and can only 

provide reasonable assurance, and not absolute assurance, that key business objectives and 

expected outcomes will be achieved and that there will be no material misstatement of records 

or losses incurred.  It also exists to give reasonable assurance about the preparation and 

reliability of financial and operational information and the safeguarding of the Group’s assets 

and interests. 
 

In meeting its responsibilities, the Board has adopted a risk-based approach to internal 

controls which are embedded within the normal management and governance process. This 

approach includes regular evaluation of the nature and extent of risks to which the Group is 

exposed and is consistent with best practice on internal control and risk management. 
 

The process adopted by the Board in reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal 

control, together with some key elements of the control framework includes: 
 

 Identification and evaluation of key risks 
 

Management responsibility has been clearly defined for the identification, evaluation and 

control of significant risks.  There is a formal and on-going process of management review 
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in each area of the Group’s activities.  This process is coordinated through a regular 

reporting framework by the Audit and Assurance Committee. The Executive Team manage 

significant risks facing the Group and the Executive Team are responsible for reporting to 

the Board any significant changes affecting key risks. 
 

 Monitoring and corrective action 

A process of control, self-assessment and regular management reporting on control issues 

provides hierarchical assurance to successive levels of management and to the Board.  

This includes a rigorous procedure for ensuring that corrective action is taken in relation to 

any significant control issues, particularly those with a material impact on the financial 

statements. 
 

 Control environment and control procedures 

The Board retains responsibility for a range of issues covering strategic, operational, 

financial and compliance issues including business planning. The Board has adopted the 

National Housing Federation Code “Excellence in Governance” 2010, which supports 

Federation members in being excellent at governing their organisations and being 

accountable, independent and diverse. The Board has conducted a review of its 

performance against this Code and can demonstrate compliance with one exception 

identified on page 7 relating to the size of the Combined Board. The code has been 

translated into an appropriate framework of standing orders, financial regulations, policies 

and procedures which Board members and colleagues follow.  These cover issues such as 

delegated authority, procurement, segregation of duties, accounting, treasury 

management, health and safety, data and asset protection and fraud prevention and 

detection.    
 

 Together with the main Standing Orders and Financial Regulations the Board has also 

established additional policies, which are designed to provide effective internal control and 

achieve effective corporate governance. The main policies include Group-wide Treasury 

Policy Statement, Fraud, Health and Safety, Colleague Code of Conduct, Gifts and 

Hospitality, Security and Access, Procurement, Equality and Diversity, Public Interest 

Disclosure (“Whistle Blowing”) and Data Protection together with policies covering all 

aspects of Employment Law and operational policies. 
 

 Information and financial reporting systems 

Financial reporting procedures include the setting of an annual budget and management 

accounts reporting to Management Teams and the Executive Team on a monthly basis and 

on a quarterly basis to the Board.  Long term Strategic Financial Plans are reviewed and 

approved by the Board and revised during the year if necessary. There is a fully inclusive 

approach with Board and colleagues in terms of updating the Business Plan and associated 

Financial Plan.  The Board also regularly reviews key performance indicators on a quarterly 

basis to assess progress towards the achievement of key business objectives, targets and 

outcomes. Performance on key performance indicators is benchmarked nationally. 

 

The internal control framework and the risk management process are subject to regular review 

by the Group’s internal auditors who are responsible for providing independent assurance to 

the Board via the Audit and Assurance Committee.  The Audit and Assurance Committee 

considers internal control and risk at each of its meetings during the year, with the risk 

registers being presented to the Audit and Assurance Committee and Boards at every meeting. 
 

The Board has received the Audit and Assurance Committee’s and the Executive Team’s annual 

assurance report detailing the evidence to support the Group’s review of the effectiveness of 

the Group’s systems of internal control.  This process involves Directors and Heads of Service 

reviewing and confirming to the Executive Team that throughout the year there was adequate 

systems of internal control in place. The Executive Team provide their assurance to the Audit 

and Assurance Committee whose chair provides a report for the Board. This system is 

supported by further evidence to provide the required level of assurance including details of 

the key policies and internal control systems together with external evidence from internal and 

external auditors and other key external stakeholders.  
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The Board has reviewed the Audit and Assurance Committee’s and Executive Team’s annual 

report, conducted its annual review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control and 

has taken account of any changes needed to maintain the effectiveness of the risk 

management and control process. 
 

The Group has a Fraud Policy and associated register. The Fraud Register is made available to 

each meeting of the Audit and Assurance Committee, the composition of which includes Board 

representatives. Minutes from the Audit and Assurance Committee are made available at each 

Board meeting.  
 

The Board confirms that there is an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing 

significant risks faced by the Group.  This process has been in place throughout the year under 

review, up to the date of the annual report, and is regularly reviewed by the Board. 

 

Colleagues 

Curo aims to recruit, develop and reward high quality colleagues.  It aims to keep colleagues 

informed on matters affecting them and on the business of the Group as a whole so that their 

views can be taken into account when making decisions that are likely to affect their interests.  

This is carried out in a number of ways including departmental meetings, formal and informal 

briefings, a monthly colleague newsletter, an intranet site and a Group wide Colleague 

Network.   
 

The Group aims to be an excellent employer and is committed to equality of opportunity 

throughout the organisation.  The Group aims to develop a workforce that reflects the diversity 

of the community within which it works.  The Group gives full and fair consideration to 

applications for employment from disabled persons, having regard to their particular aptitudes 

and abilities.  Appropriate arrangements are made for the continued employment and training, 

career development and promotion of disabled persons employed by the Group.  
 

If colleagues become disabled the Group seeks, wherever possible, to continue employment 

either in the same or an alternative position, with appropriate retraining or assistance being 

given if necessary. Applications are encouraged from groups which are under represented in 

the workforce when compared to our customer profile.  This involves providing positive action 

with regards to people with disabilities and people who have been homeless, attendance at job 

fairs, work with voluntary groups representing disadvantaged people, training and 

development opportunities for colleagues from particular groups within the workforce. Training 

and development is therefore provided to colleagues according to individual and organisational 

needs. The Group’s equality policy addresses the recruitment of colleagues.  

 

Residents 

The Group actively seeks and encourages residents’ participation at levels of decision making 

from local groups to Board participation (there is currently one resident on the Combined 

Board).  One of the major residents’ groups is the Scrutiny Panel which reviews services and 

performance across the group. 

 

Health & safety 

The Board is aware of its responsibilities on all matters relating to health and safety.  The 

Group has prepared detailed health and safety policies and provides colleague training and 

education on health and safety matters. 

 

Equal opportunities 

The Group is committed to an active Equal Opportunities Policy from recruitment and selection, 

through training and development, appraisals and promotion to retirement.  It is our policy to 

promote an environment free from discrimination, harassment and victimisation, where 

everyone will receive equal treatment regardless of gender, gender reassignment, colour, 

ethnic or national origins, disability, hours of work, nationality, religion or belief, marital or civil 

partner status, disfigurement, political opinions or sexual orientation.  All decisions relating to 

employment practices will be objective, free from bias and based solely upon work criteria and 

individual merit.  The group is responsive to the needs of its colleagues, residents and the 
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community at large and we are an organisation which uses everyone’s talents and abilities and 

where diversity is valued. 
 

In 2012, the Group became the first social housing provider to be awarded the Equality 

Standard Gold Award by Equality South West. 

 

Going concern 

After making enquiries, the Board has a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate 

resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, being a period of 

twelve months after the date on which the report and financial statements are signed.  For this 

reason it continues to adopt the going concern basis in the financial statements. 

 

Statement of compliance 

In presenting the Strategic Report, the Board has endeavoured to follow the principles 

regarding purpose, audience, time-frame, reliability, comparability and financial and non-

financial measures as set out in the Statement of Recommended Practice for Accounting by 

Registered Social Landlords 2014 Update. 

 

Annual General Meeting 

The Annual General Meeting will be held on 28 September 2015. 

 

Disclosure of information to auditors 

At the date of making this report each of the Group’s Board members, as set out on page 1, 

confirm the following: 
 

 So far as each Board member is aware, there is no relevant information needed by the 

group’s auditors in connection with preparing their report of which the Group’s auditors are 

unaware. 
 

 Each Board member has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Board 

member in order to make themselves aware of any relevant information needed by the 

Group’s auditors in connection with preparing their report and to establish that the Group’s 

auditors are aware of that information. 

 

Independent auditors 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a 

resolution concerning their reappointment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting. 

 

The Group Director’s Report and the Group Strategic Report were approved by the Board on 6th 

July 2015 and signed on its behalf by: 

 

 

 

 

 

…………………………. 

C.Roger Thomas 

Chair 

 

 

 

 

 

…………………………. 

Brian Tapp 

Board Member 

 

 

 

 

…………………………. 

Victor da Cunha 

Group Chief Executive 
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Curo Group 
(Albion) Ltd 

 
Report on the financial statements 

Our opinion 

In our opinion the financial statements, defined below: 
 

 give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company’s affairs as at 31 

March 2015 and of the group’s and the company’s surplus / deficit and cash flows for the 

year then ended; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 

Accounting Practice; 

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 

and the Accounting Direction for Social Housing in England 2012. 
 

This opinion is to be read in the context of what we say in the remainder of this report. 

 

What we have audited 

The group financial statements and company financial statements (the “financial statements”), 

which are prepared by Curo Group (Albion) Ltd, comprise: 
 

 the group and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2015; 

 the group and company income and expenditure accounts and statements of total 

recognised surpluses and deficits for the year then ended; 

 the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and 

 the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of principal accounting 

policies and other explanatory information. 
 

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law 

and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 

Practice). 
 

In applying the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective 

judgements, for example in respect of significant accounting estimates. In making such 

estimates, they have made assumptions and considered future events. 

 

What an audit of financial statements involves 
 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and 

Ireland) (“ISAs (UK & Ireland)”). An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial 

statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This 

includes an assessment of:  
 

 whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and the company’s 

circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed;  

 the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and 

 the overall presentation of the financial statements.  
 

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to 

identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any 

information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, 

the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of 

any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our 

report. 
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Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
 

In our opinion the information given in the Group Strategic Report including the Operating and 

Financial Review and the Group Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial 

statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 

 

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception 

 

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received 
 

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion: 

 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or 

 adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for 

our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or 

 the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and 

returns. 
 

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility. 

 

Directors’ remuneration 
 

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain 

disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made. We have no exceptions to 

report arising from this responsibility.  

 

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit 
 
Our responsibilities and those of the directors 
 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Board’s Responsibilities set out on page 20, the 

directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied 

that they give a true and fair view. 
 

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance 

with applicable law and ISAs (UK & Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the 

Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 
 

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members 

as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and the Housing 

and Regeneration Act 2008 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, 

accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this 

report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior 

consent in writing. 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Fiona Westwood (Senior Statutory Auditor) 

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors 

Bristol 
 

Date: 
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Group and Company Income and Expenditure Accounts for the Year ended 31 March 

2015 

 

           

  Notes  Group  Group  Company  Company 

    2015  2014  2015  2014 

    £000  £000  £000  £000 

Turnover  2(b)  68,092  63,276  5,614  5,373 

Operating costs  2(b)  (51,473)  (51,430)  (5,567)  (5,401) 

Operating surplus / 

(deficit) 

   16,619  11,846  47   (28) 

Profit on sale of fixed 

assets 

 3  886  408  -  - 

Surplus / (deficit) on 

ordinary activities 

   17,505  12,254  47  (28) 

Interest receivable and 

other income 

 4  59  169  2,038  2,940 

Interest payable and 

similar charges 

 5  (7,167)  (6,569)  (2,046)  (2,940) 

Other financing cost    (87)  (170)  (14)  (36) 

Surplus / (deficit) on 

ordinary activities 

before taxation 

   10,310  5,684  25  (64) 

Tax on surplus on 

ordinary activities 

 23  -  -  -  - 

Surplus / (deficit) 

for the year 

 6  10,310  5,684  25  (64) 

           

Group and Company Statement of Total Recognised Surpluses and 

Deficits 

  

           

           

    Group  Group  Company  Company 

    2015  2014  2015  2014 

    £000  £000  £000  £000 

Surplus / (deficit) for 

the year    

10,310 

 

5,684 

 

25 

 

(64) 

Actuarial (loss)/gain on 

pension scheme  21  

(4,509) 

 

3,472 

 

(1,349) 

 

481 

Total recognised 

surplus / (deficit) for 

the financial year    

5,801 

 

9,156 

 

(1,324) 

 

417 

 

All results derive from continuing operations. The above surplus/(deficit) is based on historic 

costs.  

 

Curo Group (Albion) Ltd registered company number 4302179. 
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Group and Company Balance Sheets at 31 March 2015 

  Notes Group  Group  Company  Company 

    2015  2014  2015  2014 

Fixed assets    £000  £000  £000  £000 

Housing properties  9(a)  324,402  302,956  -  - 

Investment properties  9(b)  3,085  1,153  -  - 

Other fixed assets  9(c)  5,988  6,148  -  - 

Total fixed assets    333,475  310,257  -  - 

           

Debtors: amounts falling 

due after more than one 

year 

 11 

 

100  100  167,750  159,750 

Current assets           

Stocks  10  61,329  42,989  -  - 

Debtors: amounts falling 

due within one year 

 11 

 

5,025  5,114  23  19 

Amounts owed from group 

undertakings 

 11 

 

-  -  154  448 

Investments  12  -  603  -  - 

Cash at bank and in hand    22,237  8,829  12,877  5,818 

    88,591  57,535  13,054  6,285 

Creditors: amounts falling 

due within one year 

 13 

 

(37,982)  (20,373)  (13,047)  (6,278) 

Net current assets    50,609  37,162  7  7 

Total assets less 

current liabilities 

  

 

384,184  347,519  167,757  159,757 

Represented by:           

Creditors: amounts falling 

due after more than one 

year 

 14 

 

264,030  240,684  167,750  159,750 

Pension liability  21  13,229  8,770  2,694  1,370 

Disposal proceeds fund  16  1,519  384  -  - 

Recycled capital grant 

fund 

 17 

 

489  322  -  - 

Capital and reserves           

Revenue reserve  18  102,490  96,689  (2,687)  (1,363) 

Revaluation reserve  18  2,427  670    -  - 

    384,184  347,519  167,757  159,757 

 

These financial statements on pages 26 to 50 were approved by the Board of Directors on 6 

July 2015 and signed on its behalf by: 

 

 

 

 

    

C.Roger Thomas 

Chair 

 Brian Tapp 

Board Member 

 Victor da Cunha 

Group Chief Executive 
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended 31 March 2015 

 

       

    Group  Group 

  Notes  2015  2014 

    £000  £000 

Net cash flow from operating activities  25  8,875  7,618 

       

Returns on investment and servicing of 

finance  

 

 

   

Interest received    59  169 

Interest paid    (7,919)  (7,208) 

Net cash outflow from returns on 

investment and servicing of finance  

 

 

(7,860)  (7,039) 

       

Capital expenditure and financial investment       

Purchase of housing assets    (31,756)  (30,206) 

Improvement to housing assets  9a  (7,905)  (6,816) 

Social housing grant received    5,719  4,854 

Purchase of other fixed assets  9b  (666)  (1,783) 

Sales of properties    3,430  2,203 

Net cash outflow from capital expenditure    (31,178)  (31,748) 

       

Net cash outflow before management of 

liquid resources and financing  

 

 

(30,163)  (31,169) 

       

Management of liquid resources       

Cash outflow for investments  26 & 27  603  645 

       

Financing       

New long term debt drawn    79,750  63,500 

Long term debt repaid    (36,822)  (46,345) 

Net cash inflow from financing  27  42,928  17,155 

       

Increase/(decrease) in cash in the year  27  13,368  (13,369) 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March 2015 
 

1) Principal accounting policies 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable Accounting 

Standards in the United Kingdom, the Companies Act 2006, the Statement of Recommended 

Practice (SORP) for “Accounting by Registered Social Landlords 2014 Update”, and comply with 

the “Accounting Requirements for Registered Social Landlords General Determination 2012”. A 

summary of the principal accounting policies which have been applied consistently are set out 

below. 
 

Basis of accounting 

The Group financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis and at historic cost, 

with the exception of investment properties that are held at fair value at the balance sheet 

date. Curo Group (Albion) Ltd. is required by statute to prepare Group financial statements. 
 

Basis of consolidation 

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Curo Group (Albion) 

Ltd. and all its subsidiaries up to 31 March 2015. The results of subsidiary undertakings 

acquired or disposed of are included in the consolidated Income and Expenditure account from 

the date of consolidation or up to the date of disposal. Intra group sales and profits are 

eliminated fully on consolidation. The accounting treatment adopted for the consolidation of 

Curo Group (Albion) Ltd, Curo Places Ltd, Curo Places (Bristol) Ltd, Curo Choice Ltd and Curo 

Enterprise Ltd for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements is set out below. 

Accounting policies are consistent across the Group.  
 

Turnover 

Turnover represents rental and service charge income receivable (net of voids), supporting 

people income, proceeds from first tranche sales of low cost homeownership and other 

miscellaneous income generated in the UK.  
 

Revenue recognition 

Rental and service charge income is recognised from the point when properties under 

development reach practical completion or otherwise become available for letting.  Rental 

income is deferred to a future period where it does not relate to the current period.  Charges 

relating to support services funded under Supporting People are recognised as they fall due 

under the contractual arrangements with the Administering Authority.  Proceeds on property 

sales are recognised on completion.  Other income is recognised as receivable on the delivery 

of services provided. 
 

Housing properties 

Housing properties are stated at cost. Cost includes the original purchase price of the asset, 

the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and 

interest charges incurred during the development period. 

Housing properties are split between the structure and those major components which require 

periodic replacement.  
 

Housing properties in the course of construction are held at cost and are not depreciated. They 

are transferred to completed properties when handed over for letting or sale. 
 

Works to existing properties 

Replacement of major components is capitalised and depreciated over its useful economic life.  

Works that result in an enhancement in the economic benefit of housing properties are 

capitalised and depreciated over the remaining economic life of the property.  All other 

expenditure on repairs incurred over the life of a property is charged to the income and 

expenditure account as incurred. 
 

Investment properties 

Investment properties, being freehold and leasehold properties are held to earn rental income 

and for capital appreciation.  Investment properties under construction are held at cost.  On 

completion, and thereafter on an annual basis investment properties are independently valued 

on the basis of market value. Any surplus or deficit arising is recognised in the revaluation 

reserve for the period. 
 

Investment properties are not depreciated. 
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1) Principal accounting policies (continued) 

Other fixed assets 

Other fixed assets are stated at cost. Cost includes the original purchase price of the asset. 

Non housing fixed asset expenditure under £1,000 is not capitalised. 
 

Depreciation 

Tangible fixed assets, except freehold land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation 

and capital grants. The depreciation charge is commenced on the first day of the month after 

completion. 
 

Depreciation is calculated to write off the costs of tangible fixed assets, less their residual 

values, over their useful economic lives using the straight line basis. The following useful 

economic lives of depreciation have been applied: 
 

Housing Properties  

Structure - General housing stock 100 years 

Structure - Precast reinforced concrete (PRC) housing stock 30 years 

Structure – Georgian housing stock 150 years 

Kitchen 20 years 

Bathroom 30 years 

Boilers and Electrical Heating Systems 15-25 years 

Heating distribution systems 30 years 

Windows 30 years 

Lifts 25 years 
 

Shared ownership assets are split between land and structure, with structure being 

depreciated over its economic useful life.  Where the Group’s interest in a property is 

leasehold, depreciation is charged over the remaining period of the lease. 
 

Other Fixed Assets  

Computer equipment and IT software 3-5 years 

Furniture and equipment 3-15 years 

Office premises (freehold) 40 years 
 

Impairment 

Reviews for impairment of housing properties are carried out on an annual basis with any 

impairment being recognised by a charge to the income and expenditure account.   

Impairment is recognised where the carrying value of an asset exceeds the higher of its net 

realisable value or its value in use. 
 

Properties for sale 

Completed properties and property under construction for outright sale are recognised at the 

lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises materials, direct labour and direct 

development overheads. Assessing net realisable value requires use of estimation techniques. 

In making this assessment, management considers publicly available information and internal 

forecasts on future sales activity. Net realisable value is based on estimated sales price after 

allowing for all further costs of completion and disposal. 
 

Social housing grant and other grants 

Social Housing Grant receivable is accounted for as a contribution towards the capital costs of 

housing schemes in accordance with the SORP. The gross historic cost of schemes and social 

housing grant are shown in note 9a.  Other grants that are received in respect of capital costs 

are deducted from the costs and the fixed asset balance is shown net. 
 

Social Housing Grant released on sale of a property may be repayable, but is normally 

available to be recycled and is credited to a Recycled Capital Grant Fund. 
  



 

Page 31 of 50                    Curo Group (Albion) Ltd.  

  

 

1) Principal accounting policies (continued) 

Disposal proceeds fund 

The disposal proceeds fund is an internal fund used to recycle the proceeds of sale under ‘Right 

to Acquire’ procedures and is included in the balance sheet under creditors.  The gross sale 

proceeds net of admissible expenses are credited to the fund. 
 

Shared ownership 

In accordance with the SORP, all shared ownership properties, including those under 

construction, are split between fixed assets and current assets. This split is determined by the 

percentage of the property to be sold under a first tranche sale, which is shown on initial 

recognition as a current asset, with the remainder classified as a fixed asset. Any surplus on 

disposal of the first tranche is limited to the overall surplus by adjusting the costs allocated to 

current or fixed assets.   The overall surplus for these purposes is the difference between net 

present value of cash flows and cost. Proceeds from the first tranche disposals are accounted 

for in the income and expenditure account in the period in which the disposal occurs.  All 

subsequent tranche disposals are recognised in the income and expenditure account as a gain 

or loss on disposal of assets (note 3). 
 

Sale of social housing properties 

Under the terms of the transfer agreement, a proportion of the proceeds from right to buy 

sales made by Curo Places Ltd. are shared with Bath and North East Somerset Council. On 

completion of a right to buy sales contract the full proceeds are credited to the income and 

expenditure account and the share payable to the Council is treated as a cost of sale. 
 

Leased assets 

The Group charges any rentals paid under operating leases to the income and expenditure 

account in the period they fall due on a straight line basis. 

   

Net investments in finance leases 

Net investments in finance leases are recognised in the balance sheet as a debtor in 

accordance with SSAP 21.    The capital element of payments received from the lessee is 

charged to the asset.  The interest element is recognised as interest receivable in the income 

and expenditure account. 
 

Capitalisation of development interest and development overheads 

Interest incurred during the construction of a new development from acquisition to practical 

completion is capitalised to each scheme at the average interest rate incurred, unless the 

financing of the development has been specifically hedged against, in which case that interest 

rate will be used. 
 

Overhead costs relating to development activities are capitalised on an apportionment of the 

colleague time spent on this activity. 
 

Stocks 

The value of stocks are shown at the lower of cost or net realisable value in accordance with 

accounting standards.  Where necessary, provision is made for obsolete, slow moving and 

defective stocks. Completed properties, and properties under construction for outright sale, are 

also recognised at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes direct development 

overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated sales price after allowing for all further 

costs of completion and disposal. 
 

Bad and doubtful debts 

Provision is made against rent arrears for both current and former tenants and against sundry 

debts to the extent that they are considered irrecoverable by management. 
 

Pensions 

Colleagues of Curo Group (Albion) Ltd., Curo Places Ltd. and Curo Choice Ltd. were eligible to 

participate in a Local Government defined benefit pension scheme (Avon Pension Fund) until 

2007.  The scheme provides defined benefits based on a colleague’s final pensionable pay.  

The assets of the fund are kept separately from the Group and are invested in an 

independently managed superannuation fund.   
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1) Principal accounting policies (continued) 

Pension scheme assets are measured using market values. Pension scheme liabilities are 

measured using a projected unit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high 

quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liability. Pension scheme 

surpluses (to the extent that they are recoverable) or deficits are recognised in full. The 

movement in the scheme surpluses/deficits other than cash contributed by the Group are split 

between operating charges, finance items and, in the statement of total recognised surpluses 

and deficits, actuarial gains and losses. FRS 17 “Retirement Benefits” has been applied. 
 

Similarly up until 2007, colleagues of Curo Group (Albion) Ltd and Curo Places Ltd. were 

eligible to participate in the Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS), a multi-employer defined 

benefit final salary pension scheme managed by the Pension Trust.  Contributions are based on 

pension costs across the various participating organisations taken as a whole.  The assets of 

the scheme are invested and managed independently of the finances of the company.  As a 

multi-employer scheme it is not possible to identify the share of assets and liabilities belonging 

to individual participating employers.  Due to the nature of the scheme, therefore, the charge 

to the income and expenditure account under Financial Reporting Standard 17 “Retirement 

Benefits” will reflect the employer contributions payable by Curo Places Ltd. 
 

In July 2007 the Group closed both defined benefit pension schemes to new entrants. Existing 

colleagues in these pension schemes were unaffected.  Subsequent to this date, new 

colleagues or existing colleagues not already in the pension scheme, are now offered to 

participate in a Group Pension Scheme, administered by Aviva.  Under the scheme, colleagues 

have been allocated their own personal pension policy and can choose their own investment 

fund from the many offered.  The assets of the scheme are separate from the Group and are 

invested by independent investment managers. The assets of the scheme are held separately 

from those of the company, invested in an independently administered fund. The pension cost 

charge in note 8 represents contributions payable by the company to all funds. 
 

Taxation 

Provision has been made for Corporation Tax based upon the profits made in the year by Curo 

Group (Albion) Ltd and Curo Enterprise Ltd.  Curo Places Ltd, Curo Places (Bristol) Ltd and 

Curo Choice Ltd all have charitable status and are not liable for Corporation Tax on their 

charitable activities. The current charge or credit for taxation is based on the surplus or deficit 

for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of timing differences between 

the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes. 
 

Value added tax (VAT) 

The Group’s primary income stream, rent, is exempt for VAT purposes. The vast majority of 

expenditure is subject to VAT, which the Group is unable to reclaim and hence this expenditure 

is shown inclusive of VAT. Some VAT can be reclaimed under the partial exemption method; 

this is credited to the income and expenditure account in the relevant cost heading. All Curo 

companies, with the exception of Curo Enterprise Ltd, operate within one VAT group.  
 

Service charges 

Service charges receivable represent income receivable from tenants and leaseholders in 

respect of services provided by Curo Places Ltd, Curo Places (Bristol) Ltd. and Curo Choice Ltd. 

Service charge income is recognised in turnover and the costs of these services are recognised 

in operating costs.   
 

Sinking funds 

Service charge funds received in advance are shown as creditors and are included either within 

amounts falling due within one year, or amounts falling due after more than one year, 

depending on when the funds are expected to be used. 
 

Schemes managed by agents 

In accordance with FRS 5 “Substance of transactions”, where the risks and rewards of running 

the scheme accrue to the managing agent the income and expenditure account includes only 

that income and expenditure which relates solely to the Association. 
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1) Principal accounting policies (continued) 

Debt 

Loans are recorded in the balance sheet at the capital value repayable to the lenders. Legal 

and professional fees incurred relating to loan arrangement fees are written off in the income 

and expenditure account in the financial year they are incurred.  
 

Derivative financial instruments 

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to reduce exposure to interest rate 

movements. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for speculative 

purposes. For an interest rate swap to be treated as a hedge the instrument must be related to 

actual assets or liabilities or a probable commitment and must change the nature of the 

interest rate by converting a fixed rate to a variable rate or vice versa. Interest differentials 

under these swaps are recognised by adjusting net interest payable over the periods of the 

contracts.  
 

If an instrument ceases to be accounted for as a hedge, the instrument is marked to market 

and any resulting profit or loss recognised at that time. 
 

Related party transactions 

Curo Group (Albion) Ltd. has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 8 “Related party 

disclosures” to not disclose intra-Group transactions.   
 

Investment in subsidiary undertakings 

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are recorded at cost plus incidental expenses less any 

provision for impairment. Impairment reviews are performed by the directors when there has 

been an indication of potential impairment. 
 

Current asset investments 

Current asset investments comprise of cash deposits placed on the money market to maximise 

interest receivable.   
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2) Turnover 

a) Total income and expenditure from lettings 
 

Housing 

accommodation 

Shared 

ownership 

Supported 

housing 
 

Group 

Total 
 

Group 

Total 

  2015  2015  2015  2015  2014 

Income from 

lettings 

 £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Income from rents 

receivable 

 56,990  934  -  57,924  53,665 

Service charges 

receivable 

 2,098  205  -  2,303  2,191 

Support charges 

receivable 

 -  -  2,223  2,223  2,159 

Gross rent 

receivable 

 59,088  1,139  2,223  62,450  58,015 

           

Other income from 

lettings 

 542  -  -  542  133 

Total income 

from lettings 

 59,630  1,139  2,223  62,992  58,148 

           

         

Service costs  2,278  203  -  2,481  2,235 

Support costs   -  -  2,112  2,112  2,019 

Management costs  9,474  128  237  9,839  9,782 

Routine 

maintenance  

 10,513  -  -  10,513  12,761 

Rent losses from 

bad debts 

 636  -  -  636  623 

Major repairs   10,290  -  -  10,290  10,677 

Housing property 

depreciation 

 7,299  122  -  7,421  6,951 

Impairment of 

housing property  

 517  -  -  517  689 

Estate costs  1,384  -  -  1,384  1,320 

Other expenditure  1,008  -  -  1,008  552 

Total 

expenditure on 

lettings 

 43,399  453  2,349  46,201  47,609 

Operating 

surplus/(deficit) 

on letting 

activities 

 16,231  686  (126)  16,791  10,539 

           

Void loss  795  30  -  825  1,068 
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2) Turnover 

b) Total income and expenditure 

         

Group 

 

 Turnover  Operating 

Costs 

 Operating 

Surplus/ 

(Deficit) 

 Operating 

Surplus/ 

(Deficit) 

  2015  2015  2015  2014 

  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Housing accommodation  59,630  43,399  16,231  10,420 

Shared ownership  1,139  453  686  243 

Supported housing  2,223  2,349  (126)  (124) 

  62,992  46,201  16,791  10,539 

         

First tranche low cost 

home ownership sales 

 2,757  1,934  823  1,062 

Leasehold properties  568  648  (80)  (39) 

Market renting  1,305  729  576  392 

Holiday letting  135  31  104  - 

Development 

administration 

 -  101  (101)  (105) 

Market sales 

management costs 

 -  1,150  (1,150)  - 

Impairment of land  -  726  (726)  - 

Commercial properties  290  10  280  305 

Other  45  (57)  102  (308) 

Total  68,092  51,473  16,619  11,846 

 

Company 

  Turnover  Operating 

Costs 

 Operating 

Surplus/ 

(Deficit) 

 Operating 

Surplus/ 

(Deficit) 

  2015  2015  2015  2014 

  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Gift aid  -  9  (9)  (9) 

Group services  5,614  5,558  56  (19) 

Total  5,614  5,567  47  (28) 
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3) Profit on sale of fixed assets 
 

 Right 

to buy 

 Right to  

acquire 

 Other  Group 

Total 

 Group 

Total 

 2015  2015  2015  2015  2014 

 £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Proceed of sales 1,657  1,663  1,720  5,040  2,749 

Less : cost of sales (367)  (1,635)  (1,004)  (3,006)  (949) 

Less : amount due to B&NES 

Council 

(1,148)  -  -  (1,148)  (1,392) 

Less : transfer to disposal 

proceeds fund 

-  -  -  -  - 

 142  28  716  886  408 

 

Cost of sales includes legal and valuation fees incurred in connection with the sale of properties 

as well as the net book value of the disposed properties.  
 

Right to Buy is available to Curo Places Ltd. tenants who transferred from Bath and North East 

Somerset Council and who hold an assured protected tenancy and to certain tenants of Curo 

Places (Bristol) Ltd.  These tenants are eligible for a percentage discount when applying to 

purchase their homes.  Tenants applying under Right to Acquire are eligible for a lump sum 

discount.  The levels of discount are governed by statute and contract. 
 

Sale proceeds from Right to Acquire disposals, net of admissible expenses, are transferred to 

the disposal proceeds fund.  This internal fund is used to ring fence these proceeds for 

investments in new homes.  
 

Other property sales include subsequent tranche disposals of shared ownership properties. 

 

4) Interest receivable and other income 
 

  Group   Group  Company  Company 

  2015  2014  2015  2014 

  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Bank and building society  59  126  -  - 

Finance leases  -  42  -  - 

Group organisations  -  1  2,038  2,940 

  59  169  2,038  2,940 

 

5) Interest payable and similar charges 
 

  Group   Group   Company  Company 

  2015  2014  2015  2014 

  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Bank loans and overdrafts  5,259  4,587  2,046  2,940 

Right to buy interest  3  3  -  - 

Sinking fund interest  1  -  -  - 

  5,263  4,590  2,046  2,940 

Net cost on interest rate swaps  2,623  2,651  -  - 

Capitalised interest  (719)  (672)  -  - 

  7,167  6,569  2,046  2,940 

 

Interest incurred during the construction of new developments, not for resale, is capitalised 

based on the weighted average borrowing rate for Curo Places Limited for the year of 3.54% 

(2014: 3.65%). 
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6) Surplus/(deficit) on ordinary activities before taxation 
 

  Group   Group   Company  Company 

  2015  2014  2015  2014 

This is arrived at after charging:  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Depreciation on owned tangible fixed 

assets  

8,248  7,556  -  - 

Auditors’ remuneration as statutory 

auditors  

29  29  1  1 

Auditors’ remuneration – other 

services certification  

2  21  -  6 

Bad debts  636  623  -  - 

Other operating lease rentals  492  476  -  - 

 

7) Directors’ emoluments 
 

The Directors are defined as the Executive Team and Board Members of the Registered 

Provider.  
 

All members of the Executive Team received remuneration from Curo Group (Albion) Ltd.  

During the year, all members of the Board of Directors received compensation. 

 

Details of remuneration are as follows:  
 

 
2015  

£ 

2014  

£ 

Aggregate emoluments paid or receivable by the Executive 

Directors  

(Including pension contributions and benefits in kind)  

692,781 555,501 

Aggregate pension contributions paid for the Executive Directors 

(including the Group Chief Executive)  
53,052 40,884 

Emoluments paid to the highest paid director (Group Chief 

Executive) excluding pension contributions  
150,738 140,263 

Aggregate emoluments paid or receivable by the Board Members 

(including the Chair of the Board) 
100,190 79,207 

Aggregate Emoluments paid to the Chair of the Board  

(Including pension contributions and benefits in kind)  
17,898 18,852 

 

No compensation payments for loss of office were paid to directors during the year (2014: nil).   

Expenses reimbursed to Board Members 

 2015 2014 

 £ £ 

Total expenses reimbursed to Board Members  9,949 5,210 
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8) Employees 

The average number of full time equivalents (35 hour week) employed during the year was as 

follows: 
 

  Group   Group   Company  Company 

  2015  2014  2015  2014 

Housing, support & administration  364  312  99  93 

Direct maintenance   97  106  -  - 

Total  461  418  99  93 

 

Staff costs  Group   Group   Company  Company 

  2015  2014  2015  2014 

  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Wages and salaries  14,559  11,998  4,245  3,691 

Social security costs  1,296  1,083  406  365 

Other pension costs   1,314  1,334  332  344 

  17,169  14,415  4,983  4,400 

 

Employer pension contributions during the year totalled £1,314,000 (2014: £1,334,000) of 

which £47,000 was unpaid as at 31 March 2015 (2014: £89,000).   
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9) Tangible fixed assets 

a) Housing properties 

 

 Housing 

properties 

completed 
freehold 

Housing 

properties 

completed 

long term 

leasehold 

Housing  

properties 
under  

construction 

Housing 
properties 

shared 
ownership 

Group  

Total  

 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost 

At 1 April 2014 
438,823 889 22,289 20,212 482,213 

Additions – new 

homes 

- - 37,694 - 37,694 

Additions – 
enhancements 

7,730 - - - 7,730 

Disposals (3,995) (5) - (4,427) (8,427) 

Transfer 21,179 - (28,274) 7,095 - 

At 31 March 2015 463,737 884 31,709 22,880 519,210 

 

Social housing grant 

At 1 April 2014 109,631 163 1,268 6,906 117,968 

Additions - - 9,273 - 9,273 

Disposals (130) - - (297) (427) 

Transfer 5,658 - (6,304) 646 - 

At 31 March 2015 115,159 163 4,237 7,255 126,814 

 

Accumulated depreciation & impairment 

At 1 April 2014 60,684 115 - 490 61,289 

Charge in year 7,811 6 - 122 7,939 

Disposals (1,207) - - (27) (1,234) 

At 31 March 2015 67,288 121 - 585 67,994 

 

Net book value 

At 31 March 2015 281,290 600 27,472 15,040 324,402 

At 31 March 2014 268,508 611 21,021 12,816 302,956 
 

 

Social Housing Grant is potentially repayable on the disposal of properties that were partially 

funded by Social Housing Grant.  All leasehold properties are held on long term leases.    
 
 

Expenditure to works on existing properties  2015 

  £000 

Amounts capitalised – enhancements  7,730 

Amounts charged to income and expenditure account  6,523 

  14,253 
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9) Tangible fixed assets 

b) Investment properties  
 

  Completed  Under  

Construction 

  Total  

 

  £000  £000   £000 

Cost/Valuation        

At 1 April 2014  815  338   1,153 

Additions  220  175   395 

Transfer  513  (513)   - 

Revaluation in the year  1,537  -   1,537 

At 31 March 2015  3,085  -   3,085 

 

 
9) Tangible Fixed Assets 

c) Other Fixed Assets 
 

  Computer 

equipment 

and 

IT software 

 Office 

premises 

(freehold) 

 Furniture and 

equipment      

 Group 

Total 

  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Cost         

At 1 April 2014  2,738  7,484  1,495  11,717 

Additions  610  56  -  666 

Disposals  (349)  -  (225)  (574) 

At 31 March 2015  2,999  7,540  1,270  11,809 

         

Grants received         

At 1 April 2014  24  -  51  75 

At 31 March 2015  24  -  51  75 

         

Accumulated 

depreciation        

At 1 April 2014  1,803  2,500  1,191  5,494 

Charge for the year  421  318  87  826 

Disposals  (349)  -  (225)  (574) 

At 31 March 2015  1,875  2,818  1,053  5,746 

         

Net book value         

 

31 March 2015  1,100  4,722  166  5,988 

31 March 2014  911  4,984  253  6,148 
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10) Stocks 

 
  Group   Group  

  2015  2014 

  £000  £000 

Land and housing stock for resale  62,005  43,594 

Impairment of land  (726)  (689) 

  61,279  42,905 

     

Consumable maintenance stocks  143  168 

Stock provision  (93)  (84) 

  50  84 

     

Total stocks held  61,329  42,989 

 

 

11) Debtors 

 

  Group   Group   Company  Company 

  2015  2014  2015  2014 

Amounts falling due within one 

year  

£000  £000  £000  £000 

Rental arrears  2,759  3,505  -  - 

Less provision for bad debts  (1,732)  (1,548)  -  - 

  1,027  1,957  -  - 

         

Other debtors  1,938  923  5  1 

Amounts owed by group undertakings  -  -  154  448 

Prepayments and accrued income  1,031  979  18  18 

Social housing grant receivable 
 

1,029  1,255  -  - 

  5,025  5,114  177  467 

Amounts falling due after more 

than one year 

        

Loan notes  100  100  -  - 

Amounts owed by group undertakings  -  -  167,750  159,750 

  100  100  167,750  159,750 
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12) Investments 
 

  Group   Group  

  2015  2014 

Money market deposit  £000  £000 

At 1 April 2014  603  1,248 

Decrease in investments  (603)  (645) 

At 31 March 2015  -  603 

 

The money market deposit relates to the investment of cash surpluses from sinking funds. 

 

13) Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 
 

 Group   Group   Company  Company 

 2015  2014  2015  2014 

 £000  £000  £000  £000 

Bank overdraft 42  2  -  - 

Rent paid in advance 1,406  1,002  -  - 

Trade creditors 23,897  5,612  -  - 

Amounts owed to group undertakings -  -  12,783  5,879 

Other creditors 665  891  264  293 

Housing loans due within one year 47  80  -  - 

Social housing grant received in advance -  3,836  -  - 

Interest accruals -  33  -  - 

Taxation and Social Security 66  317  -  106 

Accruals and deferred income 9,571  5,949  -  - 

Right to buy accruals 1,146  1,395  -  - 

Sinking fund liabilities 400  542  -  - 

Recycled capital grant (note 17) 182  19  -  - 

Retentions 560  695  -  - 

 37,982  20,373  13,047  6,278 

 

14)  Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 
 

 Group   Group   Company  Company 

 2015  2014  2015  2014 

Banks and mortgages amounts 

falling due: 

£000  £000  £000  £000 

Between one and two years 97  160  -  - 

Between two and five years 9,517  960  8,265  - 

Over five years, not payable by 

instalments 

253,542  219,108  159,485 

 

159,750 

 263,156  220,228  167,750  159,750 

Less due within one year (47)  (80)  -  - 

 263,109  220,148  167,750  159,750 

Land creditor -  19,850  -  - 

Leaseholder sinking fund liabilities 921  686  -  - 

 264,030  240,684  167,750  159,750 
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14)  Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (continued) 
 

Housing loans 

At 31 March 2015 the Group had a borrowing facility of £350.4 million (2014: £305.5 million) 

of which an amount of £263.2 million (2014: £220.2 million) had been drawn at the year end. 
 

The interest rate profile of the Group's financial liabilities was: 
 

  Group   Group   Company  Company 

  2015  2014  2015  2014 

  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Variable Rate  70,726  62,749  137,750  129,750 

Fixed Rate  192,430  157,479  30,000  30,000 

  263,156  220,228  167,750  159,750 

 

The weighted average period for loans that are fixed was 20 years 1 month (2014: 19 years 3 

months) and the weighted average interest rate was 4.11% (2014: 3.12%). 

 

Fair value of financial liabilities 

The Group does not apply FRS 26 “Fair value accounting” to its financial instruments as the 

Group has not elected to use the fair value of derivatives option under the Companies Act. The 

following disclosures have been made in relation to its interest rate swaps. At the 31 March 

2015 Curo Places Ltd. had the following swaps: 
 

 A £20 million fixed interest rate swap which matures on 29 March 2037. This swap has a 

fixed interest rate of 5.13%. 
 

 A £65 million forward starting interest rate swap which matures on 20 June 2026.  This 

swap fixes the interest rate at 3.165%. 
 

The Group’s interest rate risk management policy is designed to reduce volatility in cash flows 

and earnings over the year.  Of particular importance is the reduction of potential increases in 

net interest payable (as a result of adverse movements in short and long term interest rates) 

to an acceptable level. 
 

The currency, size and maturity of debt is matched and hedged using a combination of various 

interest rate hedge instruments. The Group’s policy is to maintain a level of fixed rate debt of 

between 40% to 70% of total debt. 
 

The Trust had hedge instruments in place at year end with the following fair values: 
 

 2015 

£000 

2014 

£000 

Fair value of interest rate swaps (17,878) (9,628) 

 

The fair value of the interest rate swaps has been determined by discounting the cash flows at 

prevailing interest rates and has been derived from the Group’s Treasury advisor’s proprietary 

models. 
 

Leasehold sinking funds 

Provision has been made representing the value of contributions paid in advance by 

leaseholders at 31 March 2015 in respect of their share of future planned maintenance. The 

total planned maintenance charged to sinking funds for the year was £125,000 (2014: 

£348,000). 
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15) Membership of Curo Group (Albion) Ltd.  

Curo Group (Albion) Ltd. is limited by guarantee and thus has no share capital.  Subscribing 

members of the company are required to contribute £10 in the event of a winding up. 

Members are entitled to vote at General Meetings and each member is entitled to cast one 

vote. 

 

16) Disposal proceeds fund 
 

  Group  

  2015 

  £000 

At 1 April 2014  384 

Purchase of new property  (281) 

Transfer during the year  1,416 

At 31 March 2015  1,519 

   

All disposal proceeds funds are deemed to be creditors for greater than one year. 

 

17) Recycled capital grant fund 
 

  Group  

  2015 

  £000 

At 1 April 2014  341 

Capital grant credited  167 

Withdrawals  (19) 

At 31 March 2015  489 

 

  2015  2014 

  £000  £000 

To be used within one year   182  19 

To be used after more than one year  489  322 

Total recycled capital grants  671  341 

 

18) Reserves 
 

  Group   Company 

  2015  2015 

Revenue reserve  £000  £000 

At 1 April 2014  96,689  (1,363) 

Surplus for the year  10,310  25 

Actuarial loss on pension scheme  (4,509)  (1,349) 

At 31 March 2015  102,490  (2,687) 

     

Revaluation reserve     

At 1 April 2014  670  - 

Surplus for the year  1,757  - 

At 31 March 2015  2,427  - 

     

Total reserves  104,917  (2,687) 
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18) Reserves (continued) 
 

Reconciliation of movement in shareholders’ funds 
 

  2015 

  £000 

At 1 April  97,359 

Surplus for the financial year  10,310 

Revaluation surplus for the financial year  1,757 

Actuarial loss on pension scheme  (4,509) 

At 31 March  104,917 

   

19) Capital commitments 
 

  Group   Group  

  2015  2014 

  £000  £000 

Capital expenditure that has been contracted for but has not 

been provided for in the financial statements  

47,287  32,422 

 

The Board expects loan facilities to be able to meet all the expenditure authorised.    

 

20) Operating leases 
 

The Group holds non-cancellable operating leases for vehicles, photocopiers, water machines, 

and a franking machine.  There were no leases relating to land during the financial year.  At 31 

March 2015, the Group had the following commitments under these leases: 
 

  Group   Group  

  2015  2014 

  £000  £000 

Leases expiring within one year  -  18 

Leases expiring between two and five years  1,506  1,981 

  1,506  1,999 

21) Pensions 

The Group operates two defined benefit pension schemes, Avon Pension Fund and Social 

Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS). The schemes provide benefits based on a colleague’s final 

pensionable pay. The assets of the funds are kept separately from the Group and are invested 

in independently managed superannuation funds. Both of these schemes were closed to new 

entrants with effect from 1 July 2007. Existing colleagues who are members of these schemes 

were not affected by these changes. 
 

Changes in the Avon Pension Fund liability arising from factors other than cash contribution by 

the Group are charged to the Income and Expenditure account or the statement of recognised 

surpluses and deficits in accordance with FRS17 ‘Retirement Benefits’. The difference between 

the fair value of the assets held in the Avon Pension Fund and the scheme’s liabilities 

measured on an actuarial basis are recognised in the Group’s balance sheet as a ‘pension 

liability’. 
 

At 31 March 2015 the pension liability, calculated under FRS17 using the projected unit 

method, is £2,694,000 for Curo Group (Albion) Ltd. (2014: £1,370,000). In the event that the 

liability was to crystallize, the costs would be met by a group recharge to Group members. 
 

SHPS is a multi-employer defined benefit scheme. It is not possible in the normal course of 

events to identify the share of underlying assets and liabilities belonging to individual 

participating employers.  Accordingly, due to the nature of the Scheme, the accounting charge 

for the year under FRS17 represents the employer contribution payable. 
 

All new entrants have the option of joining a Group Personal Pension scheme, a defined 

contribution scheme facilitated by either Aviva PLC or SHPS. 
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21) Pensions (continued) 

Employer pension contributions incurred during the year totalled £1,314,000 (2014: £1,187,000).  

Contributions incurred during the year can be broken down as follows: 

Avon Pension Fund  £860,000   

SHPS     £23,000  

Group Personal Pension  £431,000   

As at 31 March 2015, pension contributions for the month of March totalling £47,000 were unpaid 

(March 2014: £89,000). These contributions were paid as required during April 2015. 
 

It is estimated that total employer pension contributions for 2016 will be £1.4 million with no 

major changes from the level of existing contributions made. 
 

An actuarial valuation of the Avon Pension Fund was carried out on 31 March 2015 by Mercer 

Human Resource Consulting Limited for Curo Group (Albion) Ltd, Curo Places Ltd. and Curo 

Choice Ltd. using the projected unit method. The major assumptions used by the actuary were: 
 

 2015  2014 

 Curo 

Group 

Curo 

Places 

Curo 

Choice 

 Curo 

Group 

Curo 

Places 

Curo 

Choice 

Discount rate 3.40% 3.30% 3.30%  4.70% 4.50% 4.50% 

Inflation rate 2.10% 2.00% 2.00%  2.50% 2.40% 2.40% 

Increase to pensions in 

payments 

2.10% 2.00% 2.00%  2.50% 2.40% 2.40% 

Salary increases 3.60% 3.50% 3.50%  4.00% 3.90% 3.90% 
 

The mortality assumptions, common across all companies, were as follows: 
 

 2015  2014 

Longevity at age 65 for current pensioners Years  Years 

- Men 23.4  23.3 

- Women 25.9  25.8 

Longevity at age 65 for future pensioners 25.8   

- Men 28.8  25.7 

- Women   28.7 
 

The consolidated assets in the scheme and the expected rate of return were: 
 

 2015  2014 

 Long term 

rate of 

return 

expected 

Value  Long term 

rate of 

return 

expected 

Value 

 % £000  % £000 

Equities 6.50 17,077  7.00 14,295 

Government Bonds 2.20 4,074  3.40 2,838 

Other Bonds 2.90 2,561  4.30 2,052 

Property 5.90 2,444  6.20 1,951 

Cash/liquidity 0.50 698  0.50 557 

Other 6.50 2,241  7.00 3,649 

Total market value of assets  29,095   25,342 

Present value of scheme liabilities  (42,324)   (34,112) 

Net pension liability  (13,229)   (8,770) 
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21) Pensions (continued) 

Deferred tax assets exist but have not been recognised as it is considered that there will not 

be suitable taxable profits against which the reversal of the underlying short term timing 

differences can be set. 
 

Reconciliation of present value of consolidated scheme liabilities 
 

 2015  2014 

 £000  £000 

At 1 April 34,112  35,611 

Current service cost 723  924 

Interest cost on pension liabilities 1,549  1,532 

Member contributions 261  278 

Actuarial losses/(gains) of liabilities 6,517  (3,533) 

Settlements -  (552) 

Benefits/transfers paid (838)  (700) 

Business combinations -  552 

At 31 March  42,324  34,112 

    

 

Reconciliation of fair value of consolidated scheme assets 
 

 2015  2014 

 £000  £000 

At 1 April 25,342  23,606 

Expected return of scheme assets 1,462  1,362 

Actuarial gains/(losses) on assets 2,008  (61) 

Business combinations -  469 

Settlements -  (469) 

Employer contributions 860  857 

Member contributions 261  278 

Benefits/transfers paid (838)  (700) 

At 31 March  29,095  25,342 
 

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns 

available on the assets underlying the current investment policy.   Expected yields on fixed 

interest investment are based on gross redemption yields as at the balance sheet date.   

Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in 

the respective markets. The actual return on scheme assets in the year was a gain of 

£3,470,000 (2014: £1,611,000). 

Analysis of the amount charged to the income and expenditure account is: 
 

 2015  2014 

 £000  £000 

Current service cost 723  924 

Interest cost on pension liabilities 1,549  1,532 

Expected return on assets (1,462)  (1,362) 

Effect of curtailments or settlements -  (83) 

Total 810  1,011 

 

Actuarial gains and losses 

The cumulative amount of actuarial losses recognised in the statement of total recognised 

surplues and deficits e is £12,254,000 (2014: £7,745,000). 
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21) Pensions (continued) 

Amounts for current and previous four years: 
 

 2015  2014  2013  2012  2011 

 £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Defined benefit obligation  (42,324)  (34,112)  (35,611)  (29,722)  (26,833) 

Plan assets 29,095  25,342  23,606  20,283  19,106 

Deficit (13,229)  (8,770)  (12,005)  (9,439)  (7,727) 

Experience (losses)/ gains 

on plan assets 

2,008  (61)  1,586  (757)  (74) 

Experience losses on plan 

liabilities 

-  1,531  -  -  - 

Total amount recognised in 

the statement of total 

recognised income and 

expenditure 

4,509  (3,472)  (2,322)  (1,553)  (464) 

          

22) Related party transactions 

The Board members who are tenants hold assured tenancy agreements and are required to 

fulfil the same obligations and receive the same benefit as other tenants.   One of the Board 

Members is also a councillor for Bath and North East Somerset Council.   All transactions with 

Bath and North East Somerset Council are made at arm’s length and on normal commercial 

terms. Transactions cover a wide range of services and include repayment of right to buy 

surpluses, council tax and other costs. 

 

23) Taxation  

Curo Group (Albion) Ltd. and Curo Enterprise Ltd. have no tax liabilities as at 31 March 2015 

(2014: £nil).     

 

24) Homes and bed spaces in management 

  Group 

2015 

 Group  

2014 

General needs housing  8,478  8,596 

Supported housing  1,960  2,009 

Affordable rent  581  341 

Rent to buy  150  86 

Shared ownership  428  453 

Market renting  170  145 

Holiday let  5  2 

Leasehold  1,090  936 

  12,862  12,568 
 

There were 624 housing properties in the pipeline for development at 31 March 2015. Curo 

Places Ltd own 74 housing properties that are managed by other organisations (2014: 70). 
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25) Reconciliation of operating surplus to net cash inflow from operating activities 

  2015  2014 

  £000  £000 

Operating surplus  16,619  11,846 

Add back: Pension adjustment (FRS17)  (137)  67 

Depreciation   8,248  7,556 

Impairment of housing properties  517  689 

(Increase)/decrease in stocks  (18,340)  4,384 

(Increase)/decrease in debtors  (137)  1,246 

Decrease in creditors  (1,532)  (17,501) 

Increase/(decrease) in accruals and provisions  3,637  (669) 

Net cash inflow from operating activities  8,875  7,618 

 

26) Net cash flow to movement in net debt 

  2015  2014 

  £000  £000 

Increase/(decrease) in cash in the year  13,368  (13,369) 

Cash inflow from increase in investments  (603)  (645) 

Cash inflow from increase in debt  (42,928)  (17,155) 

Change in net debt  (30,163)  (31,169) 

Net debt at 1 April  (210,798)  (179,629) 

Net debt at 31 March  (240,961)  (210,798) 

 

27) Analysis of changes in net debt during the year 

 

 

2014  Cash 

Flows 

 2015 

  £000  £000  £000 

Cash at bank and in hand  8,829  13,408  22,237 

Bank overdraft  (2)  (40)  (42) 

  8,827  13,368  22,195 

Current asset investment  603  (603)  - 

Debt due in less than one year  (80)  33  (47) 

Debt due in more than one year  (220,148)  (42,961)  (263,109) 

Net debt  (210,798)  (30,163)  (240,961) 
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28) Fixed asset investments 

Curo Group (Albion) Ltd. owns a single £1 share in Curo Choice Ltd.  Curo Choice Ltd. is a non-

profit making charitable Community Benefit Society whose principal activity is the provision of 

assistance, support, housing and associated services people in need.  Curo Choice Ltd. had 

issued share capital at 31 March 2015 to the value of £16.  The other share holding members 

of Curo Choice Ltd. have no rights to economic benefits, may only hold a single £1 share, may 

not transfer their share (unless they are holding the share as a nominee of an unincorporated 

body) and may not hold shares in joint names.  Curo Choice Ltd. became a subsidiary of Curo 

Group (Albion) Ltd. in 2002 by amending its Rules. 
 

Curo Group (Albion) Ltd. owns a single £1 share in Curo Places (Bristol) Ltd.  Curo Places 

(Bristol) Ltd. is a non-profit making charitable Community Benefit Society whose principal 

activity is the provision of rented accommodation for people in housing need. 
 

Curo Places (Bristol) Ltd. had issued share capital at 31 March 2015 to the value of £20. 

Following the transfer of engagement of all of its asset and liabilities to Curo Places Ltd, this 

shareholding transferred to Curo Places Ltd.  
   

Curo Group (Albion) Ltd. is a member of Curo Places Ltd. and has agreed to contribute £10 in 

the event of the winding up of Curo Places Ltd.  Curo Places Ltd. became a subsidiary of Curo 

Group (Albion) Ltd. in 2002 by amending its Memorandum and Articles of Association. 
 

Curo Group (Albion) Ltd. exercises control over Curo Places Ltd, Curo Places (Bristol) Ltd. and 

Curo Choice Ltd. by virtue of its right to appoint and remove the Board members of the 

organisations, and the need for its consent to any constitutional amendments. 
 

Curo Group (Albion) Ltd. is the sole shareholder of Curo Enterprise Ltd. 
 

The directors believe that the carrying value of the investments is supported by their 

underlying net assets. 

 

29) Group members 

Curo Group (Albion) Ltd.’s active members/subsidiaries at 31 March 2015 were: 
 

Curo Places Ltd. – a charitable Community Benefit Society registered with Financial Conduct 

Authority and a Registered Social Landlord. 
 

Curo Places (Bristol) Ltd. – a charitable Community Benefit Society and a Registered Social 

Landlord. 
 

Curo Choice Ltd. – a charitable Community Benefit Society and a Registered Social Landlord. 
 

Curo Enterprise Ltd. - a company limited by shares.  
 

Curo Group (Albion) Ltd. is the ultimate controlling party and ultimate parent undertaking of 

Curo Places Ltd, Curo Places (Bristol) Ltd, Curo Choice Ltd. and Curo Enterprise Ltd.  It has the 

right to appoint their board members.  The publicly available financial statements of Curo 

Group (Albion) Ltd. can be obtained from The Maltings, River Place, Lower Bristol Road, Bath, 

BA2 1EP. 

 

30) Contingent liability 

Curo Places Ltd. has been notified by The Pensions Trust of the estimated employer debt on 

withdrawal from the Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS) based on the financial position of 

the Scheme as at 30 September 2014. As of this date the estimated employer debt for Curo 

Places Ltd was £3,815,079 (£3,248,000 as of September 2013). 
 

The employer will be deemed to have withdrawn from the Scheme on the date that the last 

active member leaves pensionable service. As at 31 March 2015, the Company had 5 

colleagues (2014: 6) who were active members of the SHPS scheme. 


